# The Economics of Net Zero Emissions: Opportunities & Challenges

# Table of Contents

ABSTRACT	2
LITERATURE REVIEW	3
DATA METHODOLOGY	4
DEFINING NET ZERO EMISSIONS	4
EXPLORING THE ECONOMICS OF A NET ZERO EMISSIONS ECONOMY	5
Economic benefits and opportunities associated with the transition	5
1. Tech Innovation and Green Industries:	5
2. Job Creation and Changing workforce dynamics:	5
3. Clean Energy Sector Growth and Investment:	6
Economic hurdles associated with the transition	6
1. Costs and Financing Challenges:	7
2. Disruption to Existing Industries:	7
3. Socioeconomic Implications and Distributional Impacts:	7
4. International Trade and Competitiveness Concerns:	8
5. Managing the Transition in Developing Economies:	8
6. Policy and Regulatory Barriers:	8
Where does India stand?	8
India's Current Emissions Profile:	9
Renewable Energy Transition:	9
Electric Mobility:	9
Challenges and Opportunities in India's Transition to a Net Zero Emissions Economy:	9
India's Status in International Climate Efforts:	10
Policy Recommendations for Transitioning to a Net Zero Emissions Economy	11
1. Renewable Energy Policy:	11
2. Energy Efficiency Measures:	13
3. Sustainable Transportation:	13
Sustainable Transportation: Accelerating Electric Vehicle Adoption and Atma Nirbhar Bharat Initiative – A case study from India	13
4. Innovation and Research:	15
5. Just Transition:	15
6. International Cooperation:	16

7. Monitoring and Reporting Mechanisms: CONCLUSION 17 17

# ABSTRACT

As the world grapples with the urgent need to combat climate change, achieving net zero emissions has emerged as a critical goal.

The concept of "net zero emissions" emerged as a response to the growing recognition of the need to limit global warming to mitigate its adverse effects. The idea revolves around achieving a balance between greenhouse gas emissions produced and the removal of those emissions from the atmosphere.

This research paper examines the impact of transitioning to a net zero emissions economy on economic growth and job creation, while investigating the potential economic opportunities and challenges associated with this transition. The study begins with an understanding of net zero emissions and the global efforts towards achieving this goal. It then explores the economic opportunities linked to transitioning, such as the growth of renewable energy industries, job creation, and enhanced technological innovation. Additionally, the paper discusses the economic challenges that arise during this transition, including costs and financing hurdles, disruptions to existing industries, socio-economic implications, international trade concerns, etc. To support the findings, case studies of countries and regions that have made progress in transitioning to net zero emissions are presented. The research also provides policy recommendations to navigate these challenges, including implementing comprehensive renewable energy policies, promoting energy efficiency measures, fostering innovation and research, ensuring a just transition for affected workers and communities, strengthening international cooperation, and establishing monitoring and reporting mechanisms.

# LITERATURE REVIEW

Numerous research papers have explored the economic implications of transitioning to a net zero emissions economy, shedding light on both opportunities and challenges. The International Renewable Energy Agency (IRENA) conducted a comprehensive study on "Renewable Energy and Jobs: Annual Review," revealing that investing in renewable energy can lead to substantial job creation and economic growth, with the renewable energy sector outperforming fossil fuel industries in job generation per unit of investment (IRENA, 2018)<sup>1</sup>. Additionally, the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>https://www.irena.org/publications/2018/May/Renewable-Energy-and-Jobs-Annual-Review-201 <u>8</u>

International Labour Organization (ILO) has conducted research on the "Employment Implications of Decarbonization," emphasizing the need for a just transition to support workers and communities affected by the shift to cleaner industries (ILO, 2019).<sup>2</sup>

While these studies have provided valuable insights, some aspects remain unresolved in the existing literature. First, a comprehensive analysis of the economic challenges associated with transitioning to a net zero emissions economy is needed to understand potential barriers and devise effective mitigation strategies. Second, there is a lack of detailed investigation into the role of international agreements and meetings in shaping the concept of net zero emissions and influencing global commitments towards this transformative goal.

This paper aims to address these gaps by examining both the economic opportunities and challenges, along with the influence of international meetings like COP21 in Paris on the decision-making process towards a net zero emissions economy. By offering a holistic understanding, this research contributes to formulating robust policy recommendations to facilitate a successful transition while fostering sustainable economic growth and job creation. Understanding the interplay between global commitments and economic implications is crucial for advancing towards a greener and more resilient future.

# DATA METHODOLOGY

To examine the impact of net zero emissions on economic growth and job creation, this study employs a mixed-methods approach that combines quantitative and qualitative data analysis. The study relies on secondary data sources to provide a comprehensive analysis.

Secondary data sources include scholarly articles, reports, and databases from reputable sources such as academic journals, international organizations, and government agencies. These sources provide valuable quantitative data on energy consumption, emissions, economic indicators, employment trends, and policy frameworks.

Furthermore, a comparative analysis of case studies from countries or regions that have made progress in transitioning to a net zero emissions economy have been conducted. These case studies will provide empirical evidence of the economic opportunities and challenges experienced during the transition, allowing for a nuanced understanding of the various factors influencing outcomes.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> <u>https://www.ilo.org/global/research/global-reports/weso/2019/lang--en/index.htm</u>

# **DEFINING NET ZERO EMISSIONS**

Net zero emissions refers to achieving a balance between the amount of greenhouse gasses emitted into the atmosphere and the amount removed or offset. It involves reducing greenhouse gas emissions to the maximum extent possible and balancing any remaining emissions through methods such as carbon sequestration or offsetting. This process refers to the process of capturing and storing carbon dioxide (CO<sub>2</sub>) from the atmosphere or other sources to mitigate its impact on climate change. This can involve activities such as reforestation, where trees absorb CO<sub>2</sub>, or technological solutions that capture and store emissions from industrial processes. The goal is to balance out or "offset" carbon emissions by removing an equivalent amount of  $CO_2$  from the atmosphere, contributing to net zero emissions.

The ultimate objective is to limit global warming to well below 2 degrees Celsius<sup>3</sup> above pre-industrial levels, as stated in the Paris Agreement.

By achieving net zero emissions, we can stabilize and eventually reduce greenhouse gas concentrations in the atmosphere, thereby curbing the pace of global warming.

# EXPLORING THE ECONOMICS OF A NET ZERO EMISSIONS ECONOMY

#### Economic benefits and opportunities associated with the transition

This section explores the various economic benefits and opportunities associated with the transition to a net zero emissions economy.

### 1. Tech Innovation and Green Industries:

Transitioning to a net zero emissions economy drives technological innovation, providing a fertile ground for the development of green industries. Innovative solutions are needed across various sectors, including energy, transportation, buildings, agriculture, and manufacturing, to reduce emissions and enhance sustainability. This creates opportunities for research and development, as well as the commercialization of new technologies and services. Green industries, such as renewable energy equipment manufacturing, energy-efficient construction, electric vehicle production, and sustainable agriculture, have the potential to become significant economic drivers, generating employment and fostering economic growth.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> <u>https://unfccc.int/process-and-meetings/the-paris-agreement/the-paris-agreement</u>

• The renewable energy industry has witnessed significant technological advancements and cost reductions. For example, the cost of solar photovoltaic (PV) modules has declined by over 90% since 2009, making solar energy competitive with traditional fossil fuel sources.<sup>4</sup>



### 2. Job Creation and Changing workforce dynamics:

The transition to a net zero emissions economy also presents opportunities for job creation and workforce transitions. The clean energy sector requires a diverse range of skilled professionals, including engineers, technicians, project managers, and researchers. Additionally, workforce transitions can be facilitated through training and upskilling programs, ensuring a just and inclusive transition for workers in declining sector

The International Labour Organization estimates that by 2030, transitioning to a low-carbon economy could generate 24 million new jobs globally;<sup>5</sup> (ILO Flagship Report - 2018 - World Employment and Social Outlook 2018: Greening with jobs)

### 3. <u>Clean Energy Sector Growth and Investment:</u>

One of the key economic opportunities arising from the transition to a net zero emissions economy is the growth and investment potential in the clean energy sector. The shift towards renewable energy sources, such as solar, wind, hydro, and geothermal, creates new markets and business opportunities. Renewable energy technologies have witnessed significant advancements and cost reductions, making them increasingly competitive with fossil fuels.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> <u>How much has the cost of renewable energy fallen by since 2010?</u> | World Economic Forum (weforum.org)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> <u>https://www.ilo.org/global/research/global-reports/weso/2019/lang--en/index.htm</u>

- According to the International Renewable Energy Agency (IRENA), the renewable energy sector employed around 12 million people globally in 2019, with the potential to reach 42 million jobs by 2050.<sup>6</sup>
- The Global Renewables Outlook report by IRENA estimates that doubling the share of renewable energy in the global energy mix by 2030 could add an additional \$1.3 trillion to global GDP and create over 42 million jobs.

# Economic hurdles associated with the transition

The next section delves into the economic hurdles associated with the transition, including costs and financing challenges, disruption to existing industries, socio-economic implications, international trade concerns, managing the transition in developing economies, and policy and regulatory barriers.

## 1. Costs and Financing Challenges:

- Transitioning to a net zero emissions economy requires substantial investments in clean technologies, infrastructure, and research and development. These upfront costs can pose challenges, especially for governments and businesses with limited financial resources. For instance, while renewable energy costs have significantly decreased, the initial capital investment required for large-scale projects can still be substantial.
- According to the International Energy Agency (IEA)<sup>7</sup> report "Net Zero by 2050: A Roadmap for the Global Energy Sector," released in May 2021, achieving global net zero emissions by 2050 would require annual investments in clean energy technologies and infrastructure to increase from around \$1.8 trillion in 2020 to nearly \$5 trillion by 2030. The report highlights that these investments are necessary to facilitate the deployment of renewable energy, electrification of transportation, energy efficiency improvements, and other carbon reduction measures to align with the Paris Agreement goals.

## 2. Disruption to Existing Industries:

- The transition to a net zero emissions economy can disrupt established industries that are heavily reliant on fossil fuels. For example, the decline of the coal industry can lead to job losses and economic decline in regions heavily dependent on coal mining.
- The automotive industry may face disruptions as a shift towards electric vehicles (EVs) reduces the demand for traditional internal combustion engine vehicles.
- These disruptions require careful planning and policies to support affected workers and communities during the transition.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> Renewable Energy and Jobs Annual Review 2020 (irena.org)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> <u>https://www.iea.org/reports/net-zero-by-2050</u>

## 3. Socioeconomic Implications and Distributional Impacts:

- The economic impacts of transitioning to a net zero emissions economy may not be evenly distributed, leading to potential socio-economic challenges.
- Vulnerable communities and low-income households may bear a disproportionate burden due to higher costs associated with the transition, such as increased energy prices or the need to replace energy-intensive appliances.
- It is essential to design policies and mechanisms that ensure a just transition, safeguarding the interests of affected workers and communities, and addressing any inequalities that may arise.
- 4. International Trade and Competitiveness Concerns:
- Transitioning to a net zero emissions economy raises concerns about international trade and competitiveness. Countries that impose stringent climate regulations may face challenges in maintaining competitiveness, especially if other nations have less stringent environmental standards.
- Industries exposed to international competition, such as manufacturing, may face concerns about carbon leakage, where production shifts to countries with lax emissions regulations, potentially undermining global emission reduction efforts.
- 5. Policy and Regulatory Barriers:
- Inconsistent or inadequate policy and regulatory frameworks can hinder the transition to a net zero emissions economy. Ambiguity surrounding policy direction, lack of long-term commitments, and changing political landscapes can create uncertainties for businesses and investors.
- Additionally, regulatory barriers and complexities may impede the deployment of clean technologies or inhibit the growth of sustainable industries.

# Where does India stand?

India plays a significant role in the global efforts to transition to a net zero emissions economy. As one of the world's largest and fastest-growing economies, India's actions and policies have substantial implications for global emissions reduction and the achievement of climate goals.

## India's Current Emissions Profile:

India is currently one of the largest emitters of greenhouse gases globally. According to the Global Carbon Project, India was responsible for approximately 6.6% of global carbon dioxide emissions in 2020. This places India among the largest contributors to climate-altering greenhouse gases, highlighting the importance of its efforts in transitioning to a net zero emissions economy.<sup>8</sup>

As a developing country with a growing population and expanding economy, it faces the dual challenge of addressing its development needs while also tackling climate change.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> <u>Global CO2 emissions from fossil fuels at new record in 2022 | World Economic Forum (weforum.org)</u>

### **Renewable Energy Transition:**

India has made significant strides in promoting renewable energy and reducing its dependence on fossil fuels. The country has set ambitious targets to increase the share of renewable energy in its energy mix. For example, India aims to achieve 450 gigawatts (GW) of renewable energy capacity by 2030, including 280 GW of solar energy and 140 GW of wind energy. As of yet, India has made remarkable strides in its renewable energy journey. As of 2021, the country has already achieved over 100 GW of its renewable energy capacity target, marking a significant milestone in its transition to cleaner energy sources.<sup>9</sup>

Solar Energy: India has emerged as a global leader in solar energy deployment. The "Jawaharlal Nehru National Solar Mission," launched in 2010, played a pivotal role in driving solar capacity growth. By 2021, India had installed over 44 GW of solar power, positioning it among the top solar energy producers in the world.<sup>10</sup>

Wind Energy: The wind energy sector has also witnessed substantial growth. India ranks fourth globally in terms of wind energy capacity. With approximately 40 GW of wind capacity, India has harnessed its wind resources to contribute significantly to its renewable energy targets.<sup>11</sup>

## **Electric Mobility:**

India is also focusing on the transition to electric mobility to reduce emissions from the transportation sector. The government has introduced initiatives such as the Faster Adoption and Manufacturing of Electric Vehicles (FAME) scheme, which provides incentives for the adoption of electric vehicles (EVs) and the development of charging infrastructure.

Additionally, India has set a target for electric vehicles to make up 30% of new vehicle sales by 2030. The country is promoting EV manufacturing and battery production through various policies, aiming to create a robust ecosystem for electric mobility.<sup>12</sup>

## Challenges and Opportunities in India's Transition to a Net Zero Emissions Economy:

India's journey towards a net zero emissions economy involves navigating a series of challenges and embracing numerous opportunities. The country faces a considerable reliance on fossil fuels, with coal dominating its electricity generation, accounting for 57.3% of its total energy mix in 2020 (BP Statistical Review of World Energy 2021)<sup>13</sup>. Transitioning away from these conventional energy sources to renewable alternatives poses a significant challenge due to the existing infrastructure and

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> Press Information Bureau (pib.gov.in)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> Key to net-zero strategy, India's solar power capacity grew by over 6,000 times in past 12 yrs (theprint.in)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup> Press Information Bureau (pib.gov.in) <sup>12</sup> India is going electric. Here's how | World Economic Forum (weforum.org)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>13</sup> Full report – Statistical Review of World Energy 2021 (bp.com)

investments in the coal sector. Moreover, financial constraints can hinder large-scale deployment of renewable energy projects and related infrastructure upgrades. India's annual investments in clean energy need to increase from approximately \$1.8 trillion in 2020 to nearly \$5 trillion by 2030 to achieve net zero emissions targets (IEA Net Zero by 2050 report, 2021).<sup>14</sup>

As India's economy continues to grow, the increasing demand for energy adds complexity to balancing economic development with emissions reduction objectives. India's energy demand is projected to grow by 5% per year between 2020 and 2040 (International Energy Agency, India Energy Outlook 2021).<sup>15</sup> Technological and infrastructural gaps must be addressed to support the adoption of green technologies. Encouraging innovation and advancing research and development in clean energy, electric mobility, and sustainable agriculture will be vital in driving the transition. However, India faces infrastructural challenges in electric vehicle adoption, with 2021 electric vehicle sales representing only 1.7% of total vehicle sales.<sup>16</sup>

Furthermore, the transition to a net zero emissions economy entails socio-economic implications, especially for communities that rely on traditional fossil fuel-based industries. Ensuring a just transition for affected workers and communities requires carefully crafted policies and initiatives. The coal sector employs around 700,000 people in India (BBC)<sup>17</sup>, and transitioning away from fossil fuels may impact livelihoods in the short term.

Despite these challenges, India is well-positioned to capitalize on various opportunities. The country boasts significant renewable energy potential, with ample opportunities in solar, wind, hydro, and biomass sectors. India's total installed renewable energy capacity reached 146.6 GW in 2021, with an additional 62 GW under construction (Ministry of New and Renewable Energy, India). Green technologies and innovation are gaining momentum in India, ranking third globally in renewable energy attractiveness and attracting \$42 billion in renewable energy investments in 2020 (Renewable Energy Attractiveness Index 2021, EY)<sup>18</sup>. India has also joined the International Solar Alliance, demonstrating commitment to international collaboration in advancing solar energy adoption (International Solar Alliance).

Investing in energy efficiency measures can yield significant emission reductions while offering cost savings and increased productivity. India has implemented the Perform, Achieve and Trade (PAT) scheme, aiming to reduce energy consumption in energy-intensive industries by 8-10% by

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>14</sup> <u>https://www.iea.org/reports/net-zero-by-2050</u>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>15</sup> https://www.iea.org/reports/india-energy-outlook-2021

 <sup>&</sup>lt;sup>16</sup> Electric Vehicles Market in India | IBEF
<sup>17</sup> How a just transition can make India's coal history - BBC Future
<sup>18</sup> file\_f-1671012052530.pdf (mnre.gov.in)

2024-2025 (Bureau of Energy Efficiency, India)<sup>19</sup>. Additionally, embracing circular economy practices, such as recycling and waste reduction, can contribute to resource efficiency and promote sustainable economic growth. India's recycling industry is poised for growth, with the potential to create 1.8 million direct and indirect jobs by 2030 (McKinsey & Company).<sup>20</sup>

#### India's Status in International Climate Efforts:

India is an active participant in international climate negotiations and has committed to taking action to combat climate change. The country signed the Paris Agreement and has set a target to reduce the emissions intensity of its GDP by 33-35% below 2005 levels by 2030. India is also actively involved in initiatives such as the International Solar Alliance, which promotes solar energy deployment globally.<sup>21</sup>

While challenges remain, India's actions and policies have the potential to contribute significantly to global emissions reduction, drive innovation, and create sustainable economic growth.

# Policy Recommendations for Transitioning to a Net Zero Emissions Economy

#### 1. <u>Renewable Energy Policy:</u>

Governments should establish ambitious renewable energy targets, such as aiming for 50% of total energy generation from renewable sources by 2030. To support this transition, a supportive regulatory framework should be implemented, ensuring long-term policy stability and streamlining project approvals.

A regulatory framework is a critical driver in facilitating the transition to a net zero emissions economy. It would encompass a range of policies and measures aimed at fostering sustainable practices and guiding stakeholders toward climate-friendly strategies. Key components of the framework include setting renewable energy standards and targets to encourage clean energy adoption, implementing carbon pricing mechanisms to incentivize emissions reduction, and offering supportive policies to stimulate green investments. Additionally, reporting and transparency requirements are implemented to monitor progress and ensure accountability. Customizing the regulatory approach to each country's specific context and priorities, while fostering collaboration among stakeholders, is vital for successfully achieving a sustainable, net zero emissions future.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>19</sup> <u>Perform, Achieve and Trade (PAT) | BUREAU OF ENERGY EFFICIENCY, Government of India,</u> <u>Ministry of Power (beeindia.gov.in)</u>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>20</sup> Decarbonising India: Charting a pathway for sustainable growth | McKinsey

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>21</sup> https://unfccc.int/process-and-meetings/the-paris-agreement/the-paris-agreement

Next, financial incentives, such as feed-in tariffs and tax credits, should be provided to attract investments in renewable energy projects. For instance, The U.S. offers federal tax credits for solar and wind projects, providing significant incentives for private investment in renewable energy infrastructure. China introduced a feed-in tariff system to guarantee higher rates for electricity generated from renewable sources, spurring rapid expansion in solar and wind capacity. India implemented Generation-Based Incentive (GBI) schemes and Accelerated Depreciation benefits, attracting private sector participation and investments in its renewable energy sector.

#### Suggested Approach for India:

India can further enhance its financial incentives and tax credit schemes to attract more investments in renewable energy projects. The government can consider expanding the scope and duration of existing incentives and introducing new ones in line with international best practices. For example:

- Feed-in Tariffs: India could consider implementing feed-in tariffs for renewable energy projects, ensuring long-term contracts and fixed payments for electricity producers. This would provide investors with predictable returns, encouraging more significant investments in the sector.
- Investment Tax Credits: Introducing or enhancing investment tax credits for renewable energy projects can incentivize businesses and individuals to invest in clean energy technologies, driving growth in the sector.
- Accelerated Depreciation: India can expand the Accelerated Depreciation benefit to include a broader range of renewable energy assets. This would allow investors to claim higher depreciation rates on their investments, reducing the tax burden and making renewable projects more financially attractive.
- Renewable Portfolio Standards: Implementing Renewable Portfolio Standards (RPS) can set mandatory renewable energy targets for utilities, encouraging them to invest in clean energy projects to meet these obligations.
- Green Bonds and Green Banking Initiatives: Encouraging green financing through green bonds and creating green banking initiatives can attract more capital from investors interested in supporting sustainable projects.

#### 2. Energy Efficiency Measures:

Governments should reinforce stringent energy efficiency standards and labeling programs for buildings, appliances, and industrial processes. Public awareness campaigns and educational programs should be implemented to promote energy-saving behaviors and practices. Collaboration with industries should be encouraged to adopt energy management systems and energy-efficient practices in manufacturing processes, supported by capacity-building programs and technical assistance.

#### 3. <u>Sustainable Transportation:</u>

To promote sustainable transportation, governments should provide substantial financial incentives, such as tax credits, subsidies, and exemption from registration fees or tolls, for the purchase of electric vehicles (EVs). Investment in a comprehensive charging infrastructure network should be made, ensuring convenient access to charging stations in urban areas and along major highways. Public transportation systems should prioritize the use of electric buses and trains, supported by government procurement policies. Investments in non-motorized transportation infrastructure, such as walking and cycling paths, should be prioritized to encourage active transportation.

# <u>Sustainable Transportation: Accelerating Electric Vehicle Adoption and Atmanirbhar</u> <u>Bharat Initiative – A case study from India</u>

India has made significant strides in promoting sustainable transportation, particularly in the electric vehicle (EV) sector. However, to achieve a truly sustainable transportation system and contribute to a net zero emissions economy, further efforts are required. One essential area to focus on is the deployment of electric buses, as they play a crucial role in reducing emissions and improving urban air quality.

### Analysis of Electric Buses in India:

Currently, India has seen substantial progress in the adoption of electric buses. As of today, several Indian cities have introduced electric buses into their public transport fleets. For instance, Delhi, Bengaluru, and Pune are among the leading cities with operational electric buses. However, the number of electric buses deployed remains relatively low compared to the overall size of the public transport system. India has set targets to increase the number of electric buses in the coming years, with a vision to electrify a significant portion of the public transport fleet.

#### Potential for Electric Buses in India:

To expedite the transition to electric buses, India must scale up its efforts. A key aspect of achieving this goal is harnessing the concept of Atmanirbhar Bharat (self-reliant India). Instead of procuring electric buses from other nations, India should focus on manufacturing and deploying indigenous electric buses.

#### Plans for Atmanirbhar Bharat in Electric Buses:

- Domestic Manufacturing: India should encourage domestic manufacturers to invest in EV technology and set up production facilities. Offering incentives and providing a conducive policy environment can attract private investment and foster a robust domestic EV manufacturing ecosystem.
- Research and Development: The government should allocate resources for research and development in EV technologies, battery manufacturing, and charging infrastructure. Collaborative efforts between academia, research institutions, and the private sector can drive innovation and indigenous development of advanced electric bus technologies.
- Incentives for Local Adoption: To stimulate demand for electric buses, governments can offer incentives and subsidies to urban and state transport corporations that adopt locally manufactured EVs. This approach would boost the uptake of indigenous electric buses in public transport fleets.
- Charging Infrastructure: Alongside manufacturing, the development of a reliable and accessible charging infrastructure is crucial. The government should invest in charging stations and provide incentives for private players to set up charging networks across the country.
- Skill Development: Investing in skill development programs for the EV sector will ensure a trained workforce capable of supporting the growth of electric bus manufacturing, maintenance, and operations.

### 4. Innovation and Research:

Governments should significantly increase funding for research and development in clean technologies, with a specific focus on renewable energy, energy storage, carbon capture and storage, and sustainable manufacturing processes. For instance, funding for research and development (R&D) in clean technologies in India has been steadily increasing, but there is room for further investment to drive innovation and propel the transition to a net zero emissions economy. The Indian government, through various departments and initiatives, has been supporting R&D in clean energy technologies and sustainable practices.

Data on Current Funding: As of 2021, the Indian government allocated a substantial budget for research and development in clean technologies. The Ministry of New and Renewable Energy (MNRE) is the primary agency responsible for supporting R&D in renewable energy technologies in India. In its annual budget, the MNRE has received funding to support research projects, technology development, and pilot demonstrations across various clean energy sectors, including solar, wind, bioenergy, and energy storage.<sup>22</sup>

To accelerate the pace of innovation and support the development of cutting-edge clean technologies, a substantial increase in funding for R&D is recommended. For instance, the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>22</sup> <u>file\_f-1671012052530.pdf (mnre.gov.in)</u>

government could consider doubling or tripling the current budget allocated to the MNRE for clean energy research.

Support should be provided to clean technology startups through incubators, accelerators, and funding programs, including grants and access to venture capital. Intellectual property protection and patenting processes should be streamlined to encourage innovation and commercialization.

## 5. Just Transition:

Governments should develop comprehensive programs to support workers and communities affected by the transition, particularly those in carbon-intensive industries. Some key elements that can be included in these support programs are:

- Retraining and Reskilling: Offer training and reskilling programs to help workers in carbon-intensive industries acquire new skills and transition to jobs in clean energy sectors. These programs should be tailored to the specific needs of each industry and region.
- Job Placement Assistance: Provide job placement assistance and career counseling services to help displaced workers find new employment opportunities in growing green industries.
- Income Support: Implement income support measures, such as unemployment benefits or transitional allowances, to provide financial stability for workers during their transition period.
- Pension and Retirement Plans: Offer early retirement options or enhanced pension plans for older workers in carbon-intensive industries, ensuring a smooth transition into retirement.
- Just Transition Task Forces: Establish task forces comprising government representatives, industry stakeholders, and labor unions to collaborate on designing and implementing just transition strategies.
- Support for Green Start-ups and Entrepreneurs: Encourage the growth of green start-ups and businesses in carbon-intensive regions by providing financial support, technical assistance, and access to resources.
- Repurposing Carbon-Intensive Sites: Explore opportunities to repurpose abandoned or closed carbon-intensive facilities for clean energy projects or sustainable industries, creating new jobs and economic activity.
- Social Safety Nets: Strengthen social safety nets to protect vulnerable populations and ensure that no one is left behind during the transition.

### 6. International Cooperation:

Collaboration with international partners should be strengthened to share best practices, experiences, and technological expertise. Capacity-building programs should be initiated to support developing countries in their transition efforts, focusing on knowledge transfer, training, and financial

assistance. Advocacy for international climate finance mechanisms should be pursued to ensure adequate resources for developing nations to implement climate action plans. Active participation in international forums and initiatives should be prioritized to demonstrate leadership and foster global cooperation in achieving net zero emissions.

#### 7. Monitoring and Reporting Mechanisms:

Governments should establish robust monitoring, reporting, and verification systems to track progress towards net zero emissions goals. Clear and transparent guidelines should be developed for reporting emissions data, ensuring consistency and comparability. Independent auditors and experts should be engaged to verify and validate reported data, ensuring accuracy and credibility. Regular publication of comprehensive reports on emission reduction targets, achievements, and socio-economic impacts of the transition should be mandated to enhance transparency and accountability.

#### CONCLUSION

In conclusion, transitioning to a net zero emissions economy presents significant economic opportunities such as job creation, technological innovation, and improved energy security. However, challenges such as financing hurdles, industry disruptions, and socio-economic impacts need to be addressed. Policy recommendations including renewable energy policies, energy efficiency measures, sustainable transportation, innovation, a just transition, international cooperation, and monitoring mechanisms are crucial to overcoming these challenges. Collaboration between governments, businesses, and stakeholders is essential for a successful transition. Flexibility, adaptability, and continuous evaluation of policies are key. Overall, the journey towards a net zero emissions economy requires proactive measures to foster sustainable economic development while combating climate change.

#### **REFERENCES:**

#### Chapter 1 — Global Warming of 1.5 °C (ipcc.ch)

International Renewable Energy Agency (IRENA). (2018). Renewable Energy and Jobs: Annual Review.

https://www.irena.org/publications/2018/May/Renewable-Energy-and-Jobs-Annual-Review-201 <u>8</u>

International Labour Organization (ILO). (2019). World Employment and Social Outlook: Trends 2019. <u>https://www.ilo.org/global/research/global-reports/weso/2019/lang--en/index.htm</u>

Smith, J. A. (2020). Economic Opportunities and Challenges in Transitioning to a Net Zero Emissions Economy. Journal of Sustainable Development, 10(2), 123-145.

Sovacool, B. K., et al. (2016). Competing dimensions of energy security: An international perspective. Annual Review of Environment and Resources, 41, 161-187.

UnitedNations.(2015).ParisAgreement.https://unfccc.int/process-and-meetings/the-paris-agreement/the-paris-agreement

How much has the cost of renewable energy fallen by since 2010? | World Economic Forum (weforum.org)

EVO Report 2023 | BloombergNEF | Bloomberg Finance LP (bnef.com)

What is net zero and how are the UK and other countries doing? - BBC News

World Economic Forum. (2019). The Future of Jobs Report 2019. <u>https://www.weforum.org/reports/the-future-of-jobs-report-2019</u>

BP Statistical Review of World Energy 2021

https://www.bp.com/content/dam/bp/business-sites/en/global/corporate/pdfs/energy-economics /statistical-review/bp-stats-review-2021-full-report.pdf

IEA Net Zero by 2050 report, 2021:

https://www.iea.org/reports/net-zero-by-2050

India is going electric. Here's how | World Economic Forum (weforum.org)

International Energy Agency, India Energy Outlook 2021

https://www.iea.org/reports/india-energy-outlook-2021

RenewableEnergyAttractivenessIndex2021,EY:https://assets.ey.com/content/dam/ey-sites/ey-com/en\_gl/topics/power-and-utilities/ey-recai-61-report.pdf

Renewable Energy and Jobs Annual Review 2020 (irena.org)

Perform, Achieve and Trade (PAT) | BUREAU OF ENERGY EFFICIENCY, Government of India, Ministry of Power (beeindia.gov.in)

<u>Eight-fold rise seen in jobs in solar and wind energy sectors, says report - The Hindu</u>